






From: Sarah Butler
To: Maria Simone; Kathleen Thut
Cc: Stephanie Fitch
Subject: Talent Bank Application for Conservation Commission
Date: Thursday, March 2, 2023 3:35:14 PM

Good afternoon,
         After having an in depth and very fruitful meeting with Stevie Fitch yesterday I will be
officially sending in my talent bank application and request. I am very interested in
volunteering for the Conservation Commission and look forward to hearing back on your
decision. 
Included in the email is my attachment.
                    Thank you for your time and consideration.
                                 Kindly,

                                     SarahMarie Butler (508)367-2518

                                                         
 









I

D/B/A
I

NAME ADDRESS Com 
Vic

WKdy
Amuse

Sunday
Amuse 
ment

COAD General

d/b/a The Chart Room Jarvis, Inc. 180 Shore Road, Bourne X X X

Betty Ann's Dairy Freeze 225 Main St., Buzzards Bay X

Lazy Sundaes Ice Cream 1370 Rte. 28A, Cataumet
X

Seafood Shanty 803 Scenic Hwy., Buzzards Bay X

Somerset Creamery 1268 Rte. 28A, Cataumet X

Cataumet Light Mini Golf 1370 Rte. 28A, Cataumet X

2023 Seasonal Renewals

Seasonal - General License

Seasonal - Common Victualer

Liquor

Seasonal -  Common Victualer - All Alcoholic

X



TOWN OF BOURNE 
Town Administrator 
24 Perry Avenue – Room 101 

Buzzards Bay, MA  02532 
www.townofbourne.com   
508.759.0600, Ext. 1308                                                                                                                

    

 

Marlene McCollem, Town Administrator  
Email:  mmccollem@townofbourne.com   
       

      
March 1, 2023 
 
Bourne Enterprise 
Depot Road 
Falmouth, MA 02540 
 
Re:  Legal Notice – Liquor License Hearing  
 

Please place the following legal notice in the Friday, March 3, 2023 edition of the Bourne 
Enterprise: 
 

NOTICE 
TOWN OF BOURNE 

LIQUOR LICENSE HEARING 
 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 138, 
Section 15 that an application has been received from H&J Convenience Inc. d/b/a 
Country Farms, Jigneshkumar Patel, Manager, 365 Barlows Landing Road, Pocasset, MA  
02559 for a year round Retail Package Goods Store License for the sale of all kinds of 
alcoholic beverages.  Description of premise: A total of 4500 sq. ft. including an office, 
storage, retail sales with a walk in cooler.  
 
 A public hearing will be held in the Bourne Veteran’s Memorial Community Center, 239 
Main Street, Buzzards Bay, MA 02532 on Tuesday, March 14, 2023 at 7:05 p.m.  
 
       Board of Selectmen, 
       Peter J. Meier 
       Jared P. MacDonald 
       Melissa Ferretti 
       Judith MacLeod Froman 
       Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 





















































































From: Renee Gratis
To: Peter Meier; Jared MacDonald
Cc: Amanda Bongiovanni; Marlene McCollem; Elizabeth Hartsgrove
Subject: FinCom Vote on Town Meeting Process
Date: Monday, February 6, 2023 10:29:37 PM

Good evening Select Board Chair Meier and Select Board Vice Chair MacDonald,

On January 10th the Select Board and Finance Committee met jointly to discuss the town
meeting process. After discussion the consensus was that the Finance Committee needed to
have their own discussion and make the Select Board aware of any changes.

The Finance Committee held discussions on 01/23 and 01/30. This evening, 02/06, an official
vote was taken to change the Finance Committee's role at town meeting to be making their
recommendation to Town Meeting and stating their vote. 
The committee voted 6-3-0 to approve this change.

Below, after my signature, is an example I showed the Finance Committee from Yarmouth's
most recent meeting. 
While the Finance Committee cannot dictate to the Select Board how to proceed, our vote this
evening puts the ball in the Select Board's court to discuss how you would like to proceed with
presenting articles, making motions, and explaining articles. I would suggest letting the Town
Moderator know when you have discussions, so that she can attend. I just ask that you please
keep me and Amanda Bongiovani, as FinCom's Chair and Vice Chair, in the loop as to any
decisions made. While the Select Board and the Finance Committee have different roles, the
town meeting process is still a collaborative effort.

Be advised that I will appear before the Select Board during public comment tomorrow
evening and provide a similar update.

Thank you,
Renee Gratis, Chair
Finance Committee 

I specifically jumped to about 1:27:40  (Article 13) as an example because it was the simplest
:  
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=4XhjFpuICdM

Moderator calls the article
Selectman makes the motion and seconds
Moderator asks FinCom their recommendation
FinCom states their vote 
Moderator asks the Selectmen to explain the article
Selectmen explain the article
Moderator asks for questions from the floor
Questions were answered by the Chief of Police (direct staff member to the article)





M E M O R A N D U M - Page Two 
TO: All Retirement Boards 
FROM: John W. Parsons, Esq., Executive Director 
RE: 5% Local COLA option  
DATE: November 18, 2022 

• In a regional system, two-thirds of the cities and towns within the system must
approve the increase. This is done in the same fashion as stated above for
municipalities: in a city, by the city council upon recommendation by the mayor or,
in a city with a Plan D or Plan E charter, the city manager; or, in a town, by approval
of the chief executive officer (likely the select board) as defined by G.L. c. 4, § 7.

• In a county, the county commissioners, who normally do not have a role in COLAs
nor COLA base increases, must vote to accept and two-thirds of the cities and towns
within the system must approve the increase in the same manner as stated above for
regional systems.

Though many local systems are comprised of multiple units such as housing authorities 
and districts, the two-thirds language only applies to regional and county systems as the 
approval specified in the statute only refers to cities and towns as voting political 
subdivisions. 

Section 2 of the act provides that a COLA increase pursuant to this act is retroactive to July 
1, 2022. Any COLA increase, in addition to any COLA previously adopted for FY 23, will 
become part of the fixed amount of a retirees’ retirement allowance in the same manner as 
all COLAs granted pursuant to section 103. 

PERAC has already received questions about estimating the cost of the enhanced COLA. 
PERAC Actuary John Boorack has provided the following formula for a conservative full-
cost estimate, not a one-year estimate, to assist boards in their planning: 

(0.2) x (COLA base) x (# of retirees/beneficiaries) 

If you have any questions about this memo, please contact PERAC’s General Counsel, 
Judith Corrigan, at (617) 591-8904 or at judith.a.corrigan@mass.gov. 

p:\admin\pera & perac memos\perac memo #29-2022.docx 







Estimated cost increase for FY2025 and FY2026 only based on FY2024 percentage

Additional annual cost will be added for FY2025 to FY2037 to current appropriation schedule

### UNIT estimate sheriff estimate sheriff

for FY2025 for FY2026

001 BARNSTABLE COUNTY 4.21%  $          45,451.24 27,114.00$         48,087.42$         28,258.00$      

002 COUNTY HOSPITAL 0.00%  $                       -   -$                    

003 BARNSTABLE  15.58%  $        168,201.99 177,957.72$       

004 BARNSTABLE FIRE 0.71%  $            7,665.17 8,109.75$           

005 BARN HSG AUTH 0.33%  $            3,562.69 3,769.32$           

006 BOURNE 5.66%  $          61,105.47 64,649.60$         

039 BOURNE HSE AUTH 0.07%  $               755.72 799.55$              

007 BOURNE REC AUTH 0.21%  $            2,267.16 2,398.66$           

008 BOURNE WATER DIST 0.20%  $            2,159.20 2,284.44$           

009 BREWSTER  4.03%  $          43,507.96 46,031.43$         

041 BREWSTER HSE AUTH 0.02%  $               215.92 228.44$              

010 BUZZARDS BAY WATER 0.13%  $            1,403.48 1,484.88$           

011 CC MOSQ CONTROL 0.51%  $            5,505.97 5,825.32$           

012 CC REG TECH 0.68%  $            7,341.29 7,767.09$           

013 COMM FIRE DIST 2.32%  $          25,046.77 26,499.48$         

014 CHATHAM 3.28%  $          35,410.95 37,464.78$         

040 CHATHAM HSE 0.06%  $               647.76 685.33$              

015 COTUIT FIRE 0.56%  $            6,045.77 6,396.43$           

016 DENNIS 5.10%  $          55,059.70 58,253.17$         

017 DENNIS HSE AUTH 0.12%  $            1,295.52 1,370.66$           

018 DENNIS WATER DIST 0.41%  $            4,426.37 4,683.10$           

019 D/Y REG SCH DIST 2.08%  $          22,455.72 23,758.16$         

020 EASTHAM 2.78%  $          30,012.94 31,753.69$         

021 HARWICH   4.39%  $          47,394.53 50,143.41$         

022 HYANNIS FIRE DIST 2.03%  $          21,915.92 23,187.05$         

023 MASHPEE 5.10%  $          55,059.70 58,253.17$         

044 MASHPEE HSE AUTH 0.10%  $            1,079.60 1,142.22$           

043 MASHPEE WATER 0.25%  $            2,699.01 2,855.55$           

024 T/NANTUCKET 10.52%  $        113,574.13 120,161.44$       

046 NANTUCKET HSE 0.02%  $               215.92 228.44$              

025 C/NANTUCKET 0.39%  $            4,210.45 4,454.65$           

049 NANTUCKET REG TRANS 0.05%  $               539.80 571.11$              

026 NAUSET REG SCH DIST 1.20%  $          12,955.22 13,706.63$         

027 N SAGAMORE WTR 0.07%  $               755.72 799.55$              

028 ORLEANS  3.25%  $          35,087.07 37,122.12$         

037 ORLEANS HSG 0.08%  $               863.68 913.78$              

042 GROUND WATER 0.00%  $                       -   -$                    

029 PROVINCETOWN 3.12%  $          33,683.58 35,637.23$         

030 SANDWICH   6.39%  $          68,986.57 72,987.79$         

047 SANDWICH HSE 0.09%  $               971.64 1,028.00$           

031 SANDWICH WATER 0.31%  $            3,346.77 3,540.88$           

032 TRURO 1.93%  $          20,836.32 22,044.83$         

033 VETERANS DIST 0.12%  $            1,295.52 1,370.66$           

034 WELLFLEET 2.19%  $          23,643.28 25,014.60$         

035 YARMOUTH 6.76%  $          72,981.10 77,214.00$         

036 YARMOUTH HSE AUTH 0.06%  $               647.76 685.33$              

038 W BARNSTABLE FIRE 0.22%  $            2,375.12 2,512.88$           

050 CAPE COD REG TRANS 0.26%  $            2,806.97 2,969.77$           

051 MONOMOY REG SCH DIST 1.57%  $          16,949.75 17,932.84$         

052 PROVINCETOWN HSE AUTH 0.00%  $                       -   -$                    

053 CAPE LIGHT COMPACT 0.48%  $            5,182.09 5,482.65$           

TOTALS: 100.00%  $     1,079,602.00 27,114.00$         1,142,219.00$    28,258.00$      



 
BARNSTABLE COUNTY RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

750 Attucks Lane, Hyannis, MA 02601  508-775-1110  Fax 508-775-1344  www.barnstablecountyretirement.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

***Correction*** 

TO:   Select Board 

FROM: Barnstable County Retirement Association 

DATE:  March 7, 2023 

 

We would like to inform you that on November 16, 2022, the Governor approved Chapter 269 of the Acts of 

2022 which allows for a 1 time adjust of the Cost-of-Living (COLA) for retirees from a maximum of 3% to 

5% for only Fiscal Year 2023 (FY2023).  Please note that the Barnstable County Retirement Association has 

established a maximum of $18,000.00 base for calculation of the COLA which would mean that if this is 

approved, the maximum increase to any retiree would be $30.00 per month.  Attached to this memorandum is 

a copy of Chapter 269 of the Acts of 2022, PERAC Memo #29/2022, a letter showing the additional total cost 

to the system annual for FY2025 to FY2037, what the current appropriation cost, and a spreadsheet showing 

an estimated additional cost per unit for only FY2025 and FY2026.  This is only an estimate, the percentage 

of the total appropriate per unit changes annually.  Each unit percentage is based on the reported salary on 

September 30 as a percentage of the total reported by all units each year.  Barnstable County Retirement 

Association retirees will only receive this increase if it is approved by of the Retirement Board, Barnstable 

County Commissioners, and two-thirds of the towns within our system.  If you have any questions as you are 

reviewing this information, please feel free to contact Susy Holmes at 508-775-1110 or by email at 

sholmes@barnstablecountyretirement.org    

We respectfully request that the Board of Selectman review the attached information and let us know if we 

could be of any assistance in this matter.  This matter is time sensitive as the legislation requires us to act on 

this by the end of this fiscal period (6/30/2023).  We ask that you place it on your agenda as soon as you feel 

you can make an educated vote to either approve or deny this additional 2% Cost-of-Living Adjustment.   

Please notify this office of your decision by May 31, 2023 by any of the following: 

Regular mail to:  Susy Holmes, Executive Director 

Barnstable County Retirement Association 

750 Attucks Lane 

Hyannis, MA  02601  

Fax:   508-775-1344 

Email:   sholmes@barnstablecountyretirement.org 

 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. 

 

 

***Correction was FY2024 to FY2023  

 

 







































02/28/2023

Sandwich-Bourne Lions
Sandwich and Bourne Massachusetts

Provisions of the policy apply to the named insureds participation in the following activity during the policy period shown above: Rabies Clinics  4 /1/23 and
4/15/23

The following persons or organizations granting use of real property, including structures thereon are included as Additional Insured(s), but only with respect to
General Liability arising out of the use of premises by the insured shown above and not out of the sole negligence of said additional insured.

*** Town of Bourne, ,  ***

PROVISIONS OF THE POLICY DO NOT APPLY TO THE SALE OR SERVING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

Town of Bourne
24 Perry Avenue
Bourne Massachusetts 02532-3441



From: Sandwich-Bourne Lions
To: Maria Simone
Cc: Sandwich-Bourne Lions
Subject: Re: Rabies Clinic
Date: Thursday, March 9, 2023 9:49:48 AM

Hi Maria.

No we don’t bring any van or camper.  We bring and set up tables inside the large fire truck
bay at the Bourne Fire Station.  The fire truck or trucks are moved outside for the duration. 
We’ve been doing this for many years.

We have 2-3 tables set up for payment and registration; and 2 more tables set up for the
animals to be vaccinated by Dr. Fall, our veterinarian.

We have a couple of people directing the animal owners when to go in; where to go once
they’re in, and help manage the animals.

I hope this helps.  I am planning on attending the Selectman’s meeting on March 14 to discuss
it.

Jeanne

From: Maria Simone <msimone@townofbourne.com>

Date: March 8, 2023 at 3:53:59 PM EST

To: sandwichbournelions@gmail.com

Subject: Rabies Clinic

Hi Jeanne,

 

A question came up regarding the upcoming Rabies Clinic. Could you please tell me what the set up
will be like? For example, will there be a van or trailer coming in where the pets will enter to be
given shots?

 

Thank you, 

 

Maria Simone









Board of Selectmen 
Minutes of Monday, January 9, 2023 

Bourne Veterans’ Community Center – Rm 2 
Buzzards Bay, MA 

Or Virtually 

 
TA Marlene McCollem 
ATA Liz Hartsgrove 
 

Board of Selectmen 

Peter Meier, Chair 
Jared MacDonald, Vice Chair 
Melissa Ferretti, Clerk (virtual) 
Judith Froman 
Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 
Others:  Michael Rausch, Attorney Bryan Bertram, Patrick Ross, Jenny Ross, Attorney Adam Barnowski, 
Langdon Allen, Kristine Fisher, Scott Froman, Neil Langille (virtual), Tom Williams (virtual), Gary 
Crossen (virtual),  Stephanie White (virtual), Stephen Miller (virtual), and Mrs. McNally (virtual).  
 
The Zoom Chat will not be monitored.  Participants who wish to speak must raise the hand icon until the 
Chair asks them to unmute.  Note this meeting is being recorded for live broadcast and televised replay by 
Bourne TV.  If anyone is audio or visual recording, please acknowledge it at this time. 
 
Michael Rausch, Bourne Enterprise, acknowledged that he is recording this meeting.  
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505            Password :  529740 
 
All items within the meeting agenda are subject to deliberation and vote(s) by the Board of Selectmen.  
 
7:00  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 

 
1. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items – Public Comments are allowed for up to a total of 12 

minutes at the beginning of each meeting.  Each speaker is limited to 3 minutes for comment.  
Based on past practice, members of the Board are not allowed to comment or respond.  
 
 

2. Appointments and Licenses 
 

a. Public Hearing:  Application for a new “All Alcoholic Beverages Package Store License” 
by Sea State Foods LLC d/b/a Cataumet Fish – proposed to be located at 1360 Route 28A, 
Cataumet, MA 02534. 
 

2.a. Public Hearing:  Application for a new “All Alcoholic Beverages Package Store License” 
 by Sea State Foods LLC d/b/a Cataumet Fish – proposed to be located at 1360 Route 
 28A, Cataumet, MA 02534. 
 
  















Board of Selectmen 
Minutes of Tuesday, January 24, 2023 

Meeting held virtually 
 
TA Marlene McCollem 
 

Board of Selectmen 

Peter Meier, Chair 
Jared MacDonald, Vice Chair 
Melissa Ferretti, Clerk 
Judith Froman 
Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 
Others:  Gary Maloney, Bourne TV and Kathleen Thut (notes)  
 
The Zoom Chat will not be monitored.  Participants who wish to speak must raise the hand icon until the Chair 
asks them to unmute.  Note this meeting is being recorded for live broadcast and televised replay by Bourne TV.  
If anyone is audio or visual recording, please acknowledge it at this time. 
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505            Password :  529740 
 
12:30  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 
 
1.  Selectmen’s Business –  

a.  Discussion and possible vote to approve the sale of Bond Anticipation Notes (BANS). 
 

Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the following motion: 
Motion:  To approve the bonding as written in the packet. 

Vote: 5-0-0.   
 
b.  Discussion and possible vote for any further changes to the DEP Title V comment letter. 
Town Administrator, Marlene McCollem, said that there were no comments or changes suggested by the 
deadline.  MJ Mastrangelo noticed 2 small typographical errors but said letter had good tone and depicted 
Select Board comments.   
 
Voted:  Mary Jane Mastrangelo moved, and Jared MacDonald seconded to approve the following motion: 
 
Motion:  To approve and sign the letter as written (except for 2 typos mentioned).  Letter will be sent 
on behalf of Select Board only.   

Vote: 5-0-0.   
 

2.  Adjourn 
 
Voted:  Jared MacDonald moved, and Judith Froman seconded to adjourn. 
Vote: 5-0-0.   

 
This meeting of the Bourne Board of Selectmen was adjourned at 12:47 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Kathleen Thut 



Select Board 
Minutes of Tuesday, February 14, 2023 

Bourne Veterans’ Community Center – Rm 2 
Buzzards Bay, MA 

Or Virtually 

 
TA Marlene McCollem 
ATA Liz Hartsgrove 
 

Select Board  

Peter Meier, Chair 
Jared MacDonald, Vice Chair (virtual) 
Melissa Ferretti, Clerk 
Judith Froman 
Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 
Others:  John York (virtual 7:30), Jonathan Hobill, and Neal Comen.  
 
The Zoom Chat will not be monitored.  Participants who wish to speak must raise the hand icon until the 
Chair asks them to unmute.  Note this meeting is being recorded for live broadcast and televised replay 
by Bourne TV.  If anyone is audio or visual recording, please acknowledge it at this time. 
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505            Password :  529740 
 
All items within the meeting agenda are subject to deliberation and vote(s) by the Select Board.  
 
7:00  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 
 

1. Moment of Silence to recognize our Troops and our public safety personnel. 
 

2. Salute to the Flag.   
 

3. Vision:  Bourne is a proud community that embraces change while respecting the rich heritage 
of the town and its villages. It is a municipality based on strong fiscal government with a 
durable economy that recognizes the rights of all citizens, respects the environment, especially 
the coastal areas of the community and the amenities that it affords. Bourne embraces excellent 
education, and offers to citizens a healthy, active lifestyle. 

 

4. Mission:  Bourne will maximize opportunities for social and economic development while 
retaining an attractive, sustainable, and secure coastline and environment for the enjoyment of 
residents and visitors. Through responsible and professional leadership and in partnership with 
others, Bourne will strive to improve the quality of life for all residents living and working in 
the larger community. 

 
Chair Maier said that they read the Vision and Mission at every meeting, and they are posted on 
the wall in this meeting room. Chair Meier also wanted to thank the Bourne Fire and Police 
Departments and the other departments that had to respond to Upper Cape Tech for a fire in the 
kitchen.  He said that everyone did a good job.  



















Select Board 
Minutes of Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

Bourne Veterans’ Community Center – Rm 2 
Buzzards Bay, MA 

Or Virtually 

 
TA Marlene McCollem 
ATA Liz Hartsgrove 
 

Select Board  

Peter Meier, Chair 
Jared MacDonald, Vice Chair  
Melissa Ferretti, Clerk 
Judith Froman 
Mary Jane Mastrangelo 
 
Others:  Dan Doucette, Planning Board Chair, Jim Robinson, Christopher Farrell, Elizabeth Brown, 
Jeanne Azarovitz,   
 
The Zoom Chat will not be monitored.  Participants who wish to speak must raise the hand icon until the 
Chair asks them to unmute.  Note this meeting is being recorded for live broadcast and televised replay 
by Bourne TV.  If anyone is audio or visual recording, please acknowledge it at this time. 
 
If anyone from the public wishes to access the meeting, they can do so by calling the following 
conference line:  1-929-205-6099. 
 
Zoom Meeting ID:  869 5775 5505            Password : BOURNE 
 
All items within the meeting agenda are subject to deliberation and vote(s) by the Select Board.  
 
6:47  PM Call Public Session to Order in Open Session 
 
Dan Doucette, Planning Board, Chairman of the Bourne Planning Board, called the Planning Board 
meeting to order.  
 

1. Moment of Silence to recognize our Troops and our public safety personnel. 
 

2. Salute to the Flag.   
 

3. Vision:  Bourne is a proud community that embraces change while respecting the rich heritage 
of the town and its villages. It is a municipality based on strong fiscal government with a 
durable economy that recognizes the rights of all citizens, respects the environment, especially 
the coastal areas of the community and the amenities that it affords. Bourne embraces excellent 
education, and offers to citizens a healthy, active lifestyle. 

 

4. Mission:  Bourne will maximize opportunities for social and economic development while 
retaining an attractive, sustainable, and secure coastline and environment for the enjoyment of 
residents and visitors. Through responsible and professional leadership and in partnership with 









 
 

 

Selectmen’s Correspondence 

March 14, 2023 

A. DEP letter Draft Revision Feasibility Study Skeet Range 

B. Army Corp Canal Project – Abutter’s Notice 

C. Bourne Workshop 2 Flyer – Low Lying Roads Project 

D. Xfinity letter- rate increase 

E. Letter from Cape Cod Commission – Digital Equity Planning Notice 



 

 
 
 

 

 

Maura T. Healey 

Governor 

 

Kimberley Driscoll 

Lieutenant Governor 

 

Rebecca L. Tepper 

Secretary 

 

Gary Moran 
   Acting Commissioner 

 

This information is available in alternate format. Please contact Melixza Esenyie at 617-626-1282. 

TTY# MassRelay Service 1-800-439-2370 

MassDEP Website: www.mass.gov/dep 

Printed on Recycled Paper 
 

 

 March 3, 2023 
 

Air Force Civil Engineer Center/JBCC 
Attn: Ms. Rose H. Forbes 
Remediation Program Manager 
322 East Inner Road 
Otis ANG Base, Massachusetts 02542 
 

RE: BOURNE – BWSC 
Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037 
Joint Base Cape Cod (JBCC) 
Draft Revision 1 Feasibility Study Skeet 
Range Munitions Response Area, 
Comments 

    
Dear Ms. Forbes: 
 
The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) has reviewed the document 
“Draft Revision 1 Feasibility Study Skeet Range Munitions Response Area” dated February 2023 (the 
Revised Draft FS.  The Revised Draft FS was prepared by the Air Force Civil Engineer Center (AFCEC) to 
develop and evaluate remedial alternatives to address lead contaminated soil at the Skeet Range 
munitions response area (MRA).  Recommendations in the Revised Draft FS are intended to support the 
selection of a remedial alternative for the Skeet Range munitions response site to mitigate unacceptable 
risks to human health from lead in soil.  MassDEP has the following comments on the Revised Draft FS. 
 
1. Page 2-8, Section 2.3.1.2, Previous Investigations, Comprehensive Site Evaluation Phase II, Initial CSE 

Phase II Soil Sampling: 
The text states, "Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (maximum concentration of 0.298 mg/kg) exceeded the 
EPA industrial RSL of 0.29 mg/kg in one soil sample."  MassDEP notes that Figure 2-3 Summary of 
CSE Phase II Results for PAHs illustrates that the maximum concentration of Dibenz(a,h)anthracene is 
reported at a concentration of 242 mg/kg in soil sample 75-H2-SS-1000.  Please clarify and revise the 
figure and text as necessary. 
 

2. Page 2-13, Section 2.3.3.3, Previous Investigations, Groundwater, PAH Results: 
The text states, "PAH analytes 2-methylnaphthalene (89 ug/L) and naphthalene (180 ug/L) exceeded 
EPA tap water RSLs in groundwater sample GW-1 at 48 ft bgs."  The polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon 
(PAH) analytes 2-methylnaphthalene and naphthalene also exceeded the MassDEP GW-1 Standard of 
10 micrograms per liter (μg/L) and 140 μg/L respectively in groundwater sample GW-1 at 48 feet bgs.  
Please revise the text. 
 
 
 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                                                       Page 2 of 3 
 

3. Page 2-13, Section 2.3.4.1, Previous Investigations, Summary of Previous Investigation Sampling 
Results, ISM Surface Soil Results: 
During the CSE Phase II soil sampling event, PAH compounds were found in various incremental 
sampling methodology (ISM) surface soil samples at concentrations exceeding their respective 
screening values, to include the EPA Industrial Soil Regional Screening Level (RSL), the EPA Residential 
Soil RSL, and the MassDEP state background value.  For completeness, please address the ISM surface 
soil results for PAHs in summation within this section. 
 

4. Page 2-15, Section 2.4.1, Conceptual Site Model, Nature and Extent: 
The text states, "Concentrations of lead are above screening values within the skeet range fan, with 
higher concentrations at the surface than in the subsurface soil intervals indicating that lead is 
complexed and relatively immobile."  Please revise the text to indicate that concentrations of PAHs 
were also detected above their respective screening values within the skeet range fan. 

 
5. Page 2-15, Section 2.4.3, Conceptual Site Model, Human Health Risk Assessment: 

The text states, "The small remaining acreage (6.7 acres) was not evaluated as it consists of man-
made infrastructure (i.e., roads, buildings) and soil data were not collected (Exposure Areas D and 
E)."  Figure 2-5 Remedial Investigation Vertical Soil Sample Results for Lead illustrates that an ISM soil 
sample was collected from decision unit (DU) O3 within Exposure Area E.  Please revise the text. 
 

6. Page 2-16, Section 2.4.3, Conceptual Site Model, Human Health Risk Assessment: 
The text states, "All receptors were evaluated for their exposure to soil in Exposure Areas A, B, and 
C and hypothetical future residents were also evaluated for exposure to groundwater (as a tap 
water source) in Exposure Area C only.”  Within Exposure Area E, groundwater samples were 
collected which had concentrations that exceeded the EPA Tap water RSL and the MassDEP GW-1 
Standard.  Please clarify why Exposure Area E was not used to evaluate hypothetical future residents 
for exposure to groundwater. 

 
7. Page 2-20, Section 2.4.5, Conceptual Site Model, Summary of Contaminants of Concern and Exposure 

Pathways: 
The text states, "The COPCs identified at the Skeet Range MRS included MC metals (lead) and PAHs 
associated with targets (i.e., clay pigeons) (benzo(a)anthracene, benzo(a)pyrene, 
benzo(b)fluoranthene, dibenz(a,h)anthracene, and indeno(1,2,3-c,d)pyrene) in soil and 
benzo(a)anthracene and benzo(a)pyrene in groundwater."  Figure 2-7 Remedial Investigation 
Groundwater Sample Results for Lead and PAHs illustrates that naphthalene and 2-
methylnaphthalene were detected in groundwater samples within the Skeet Range MRS at 
concentrations that exceeded the EPA Tap water RSL and the MassDEP GW-1 Standard.  Please clarify 
why those analytes were not identified as contaminants of potential concern in groundwater and 
revise the text as necessary. 

 
8. Page 3-4, Section 3.2.2, Remedial Action Objectives, Area/Volume of Attainment: 

The text states, "To be conservative and to account for the discrete surface sample exceedance at 
DU M3, it is assumed that 6 in. would be removed from the seven grids with concentrations above 
the PRG of 200 mg/kg for lead (Figure 2-5).  Therefore, the estimated total volume exceeding PRGs 
is 35,000 cubic ft (1,300 cubic yards)."  A discrete surface soil sample collected at DU M3 from a depth 
interval of 0 to 12 inches bgs had a lead concentration exceeding the preliminary remediation goal 
(PRG) of 200 mg/kg.  Please provide justification for why only the top 6 inches bgs and not the top 12 
inches bgs of soil would be removed from the seven grids that had concentrations above the PRG for 



Release Tracking Number: 4-0000037                                                                                                                       Page 3 of 3 
 

lead.  Please revise the text as necessary.  In addition, please revise the Revised Draft FS to include 
the applicable Remedial Action Cost Engineering and Requirements worksheets in Appendix A for the 
estimated volume of soil exceeding PRGs.  

 
Please incorporate this letter into the Administrative Record for the Skeet Range MRA for the Military 
Munitions Response Program at Joint Base Cape Cod.  If you have any questions regarding this letter, please 
contact me at (508) 946-2871 or Kendall Walker at (508) 946-2846. 
 

Sincerely,  
 

  
 
Leonard J. Pinaud, Chief                                                                                     
Federal Site Management  
Bureau of Waste Site Cleanup 
 

P/kw 
 

Ec:   Upper Cape Select Boards  
Upper Cape Boards of Health  
JBCC Cleanup Team                                                                               
MassDEP Boston/Southeast Region 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: March 7, 2023 

 

To: Cape Cod Boards of Selectmen & Barnstable Town Council 

Cape Cod Town Administrators and Managers 

 Cape Cod Town Planners and Planning Board Chairs 

 

From: Kristy Senatori, Executive Director, Cape Cod Commission 

 

Dear Municipal Official: 

 

The Cape Cod Commission would like to highlight an opportunity for municipalities to receive 

digital equity planning services at no cost. Offered through the Massachusetts Broadband 

Institute (MBI), the Municipal Digital Equity Planning Program is currently accepting applications 

on a rolling basis. Municipalities participating in this program will receive assistance from a 

network of prequalified consultants, which includes the Cape Cod Commission. 

The purpose of this program is to assist municipalities in assessing the digital divide in their 

community (internet affordability, affordable devices appropriate for an individual’s civic, social, 

and employment needs, and the skills necessary to engage digitally) and identify solutions 

towns can further through other state and local efforts. The program is designed to: 

• Guide municipal decision-making and investments to increase access, adoption, and 

usage of the internet for the populations most affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

• Prepare municipalities to submit grant proposals to existing or forthcoming state or 

federal programs to support digital equity activities. 

 

Municipalities may choose between two planning options: an intensive short-term 

workshop/charrette (approximately 8 hours) and/or a more focused planning process (3-6 

months), both of which will engage stakeholders to gather information on local digital equity 

needs and issues.  

 

Through this planning process information gathered will identify challenges and barriers to 

digital access and priorities and solutions for advancing digital equity and access. The resulting 



report will be issued to the town and incorporated into the statewide digital planning efforts 

being coordinated by MBI. The report will complement ongoing and planned regional efforts to 

understand and document Cape Cod’s broadband needs and challenges and, together make the 

region and municipalities more competitive for upcoming state and federal funding 

opportunities. 

 

WHO IS ELIGIBLE? 

Communities that have the presence of impacted (300% poverty) or disproportionately 

impacted (185% poverty) populations, as defined by U.S. Treasury guidance related to American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF). All 

communities on Cape Cod have the presence of these populations and are therefore eligible. 

 

HOW TO APPLY 

Municipalities can apply to MBI through their online form. Municipalities will then be provided 

with a list of pre-qualified consultants to choose from.  

 

Commission staff are available to assist in the application process and explain each planning 

option and provide data needed to answer the brief application questions. Communities are 

encouraged to consider a multi-town, subregional approach to digital equity planning, where 

appropriate to cooperatively identify and develop strategies to tackle shared challenges. 

Commission staff are available to assist with discussions of potential subregional applications. 

 

TO FIND OUT MORE 

More information and the online municipal application can be found at the MBI 

website: https://broadband.masstech.org/municipal.  

 

Visit the Cape Cod Commission Municipal Digital Equity Planning Services webpage for 

application data, at https://capecodcommission.org/our-work/digital-equity-program/. Please 

feel free to reach out to Steven Tupper (stupper@capecodcommission.org, 508-744-1232) if you 

have any questions regarding this opportunity.  

 

 

cc:  Cape Cod Commission members 




